
AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, July 30, 2020 

One Transit Way, Granite City, Illinois 

Section Item Recommendation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order:  Roll Call. 

Election of Officers. 

Public Comments. 

St. Louis Regional Freightway Presentation: 
Taulby Roach, President and Chief Executive Officer of Bi-
State Development and Mary C. Lamie, P.E., Executive 
Director of St. Louis Regional Freightway      

Information 

I. Consideration of the minutes of the June 22, 2020 regular
meeting for inclusion in the official records of the District. Approval 

II. Financial:

A. Payments and Claims: Consideration of the June 2020 claims
for payment. Approval 

B. Monthly Financial Report: Review of the monthly financial
records as of June 30, 2020. Approval 

C. Review and Discussion of the District’s Investment Policy Approval 

D. Resolution 21-01 Authorizing Execution and Amendment of
Downstate Operating Assistance Grant Agreement with the
Illinois Department of Transportation

Approval 

III. Transit Service:

A. Managing Director’s Report, SJ Morrison. Information  

B. MCT Trails Wayfinding Project Information 

C. Art and Beautification on the MCT Trails Discussion 

D. Alternative Transit Solutions Discussion 

E. Appointment of Steven J. Morrison as Managing Director Approval 

F. Resolution 21-02 Authorizing Managing Director to Sign
Normal and Routine Documents for the Madison County Mass
Transit District

Approval 



AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, July 30, 2020 

One Transit Way, Granite City, Illinois 

G. Resolution 21-03 Authorizing the Adoption of the Public
Transportation Agency Safety Plan Approval 

H. Resolution 21-04 Designating Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Liaison Officer and Equal Employment Opportunity
Program Liaison

Approval 

IV. Other Business:

V. 
Executive session to discuss the acquisition, and/or sale or
lease of property under 2(c)5, litigation under 2(c)11, and
review executive session of minutes under 2(c)21 of the Open
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2).

I. Resolution 21-05 Authorizing the Release of Certain Executive
Session Minutes Approval 

Adjournment Approval 



MINUTES 
Board of Trustees 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
One Transit Way, Granite City, Illinois 

9:00 a.m., Monday, June 22, 2020 

Call to Order: Roll Call 

Chairman Jedda called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MEMBER ABSENT: 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

Pledge of Allegiance 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE (ELECTRONIC), ANDREW F. 
ECONOMY, CHRISTOPHER C. GUY (ELECTRONIC), 
RONALD L. JEDDA, AND J. KELLY SCHMIDT. 

NONE. 

TONYA GENOVESE, LEGAL COUNSEL; ANDREW 
CARRUTHERS, LEGAL COUNSEL; SJ MORRISON, ACT; 
SUMMER MOORE, ACT; MICHELLE DOMER, ACT; PHIL 
ROGGIO, ACT; MARK STEYER, ACT; JONATHAN 
CORTEZ, ACT; AMANDA SMITH-VILIOCCO, ACT; JOE 
DOMER, ACT. 

Chairman Jedd led the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Public Comments 

No public comments were presented. 

Hearing and Public Comment Period for Annual Operating and Capital Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance. 

No public comments were presented. 

I. Consideration of the Minutes of the May 28
1 

2020. regular meeting for inclusion in
the official records of the District.

TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY, TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR INCLUSION IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE
DISTRICT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

II. Financial

A. Payments and Claims: Consideration of the May 2020 claims for payment:

1 



Interim Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the payments and claims report. 

TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY, 
TO APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY 
RONALD L. JEDDA 

ABSTAINED 
AYE 
AYE 
AYE 

J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

TRUSTEE ADOMITE ABSTAINED. ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ADOMITE, 
TO APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS, EXCLUDING THE PAYMENTS AND 
CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY. _., 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. J EDDA A YE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT - AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

B. Monthly Financial Report: Reviews of the monthly financial records as of May 31,
2020:

Interim Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the monthly financial report.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE OF THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF DATE.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

C. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY, 
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE:

20-04 ADOPTION OF THE ANNUAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND
APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE OF THE MADISON COUNTY MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS FO RTHE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2020, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2021 

2 



A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA A YE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

D. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

20-65 AMENDING THE FY 2020 OPERATING BUDGET FOR CARES ACT
REVENUE 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

E. TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

20-66 AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE FROM TYLER TECHNOLOGIES OF
ADDITIONAL MUNIS ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE MODULES 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

Ill. Transit Service 

A. Managing Director's Report:

Interim Managing Director SJ Morrison produced the report.

B. Plans and Budget for Administration Building & Base of Operations Safety & Security
Improvements.

C. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE OF THE PROPOSAL FOR FIXED-ROUTE SERVICE
RESTORATION, BEGINNING WITH THE AUGUST SERVICE CHANGE

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

3 



ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

D. TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,

TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

20-67 AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION WITH THE METRO

EAST PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT FOR PARK AND TRAIL GRANT 

PROGRAM FUNDS 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY 

RONALD L. JEDDA 

ABSTAINED 

AYE 

AYE 

AYE 

J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

TRUSTEE ADOMITE ABSTAINED. ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

E. TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,

TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

20-68 AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION WITH THE ILLINOIS

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR MULTI-MODAL 

TRANSPORTATION BOND FUNDS FOR DOWNSTATE PUBLIC 

TRANSPORTATION 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

IV. Other Business

A. TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,

TO AMEND THE PROPOSED FY 2021 SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEETING DATES

START TIME TO 8:30 A.M.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 

4 



J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT, 
TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED FY 2021 SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEETING 
DATES 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA A YE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

V. Executive session to discuss the acquisition, and/or sale or lease of property under
5 ILCS 2(c)(5) of the Open Meeting Act.

TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT, TO
MOVE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE ACQUISITION, AND/OR SALE
OF LEASE OF PROPERTY (5ILCS 120/2 ET. SEQ., 2(C)(5) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS
ACT.)

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT, TO 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

ADJOURNMENT 

TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY TO 
ADJOURN. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

5 



ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 11 :06 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted 

6 



07/21/2020 15:24
jhartke 
WARRANT: 073020 

EMP # NAME 

! Madison County Mass Transit District
I
P 1

CURRENT CHECK REGISTER - PER DIEM prchkreg 
06/01/2020 to 06/30/2020 CHECK DATE: 07/30/2020 

TYP NET PAY CHECK #
------ -------------------- ------------- ---------

CHECK DATE SPECIAL 

07/30/2020
07/30/2020

10012 ADOMITE, ALLEN P. CK 0.00 003210001 
10009 JEDDA, RONALD L. CK 0.00 003210002 

2 ** TOTAL CHECK(S) 0.00 

07/21/2020 15:53 
jhartke 

! Madison County Mass Transit District
ADVICE REGISTER - PER DIEM 

From: 06/01/2020 To: 06/30/2020 WARRANT: 073020 

EMP # 

10013
10011
10010

1138

NAME 

ECONOMY, ANDREW F 
GUY, CHRISTOPHER C 
SCHMIDT, J. KELLY 
Internal Revenue Servi

Total Deposits: 4 

CHK # 

005210001
005210002
005210003
005210004

Ip 1 pradvreg 

NET PAY 

184.70
184.70
184.70
522.40

1,076.50 





06/26/2020 10:12 
tpohlman 

! Madison County Mass Transit District
CHECK REGISTER 

CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account 
CHECK NO CHK DATE TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE

4200659 06/26/2020 PRTD 3814 Gillig LLC 67352 

67353 

67354 

67463 

67464 

NUMBER OF CHECKS 1 

TOTAL PRINTED CHECKS 

INV DATE PO WARRANT 

05/26/2020 11900116 062420 

05/27/2020 11900116 062420 

06/01/2020 11900116 062420 

06/02/2020 11900116 062420 

06/04/2020 11900116 062420 

CHECK 4200659 TOTAL: 

*** CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL 

COUNT AMOUNT 

1 2,401,475.52 

*** 

*** GRAND TOTAL*** 

Ip 
1

apcshdsb

NET 

482,224.00 

482,224.00 

472,579.52 

482,224.00 

482,224.00 

2,401,475.52 

2,401,475.52 

2,401,475.52 



07/09/2020 11:23 
tpohlman !Madison County Mass Transit District

CHECK REGISTER 

CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account 
CHECK NO CHK DATE TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE PO WARRANT 

Ip 
1 

apcshdsb 

NET 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

4210001 07/09/2020 PRTD 1253 City Treasurer Granite City 062920 06/26/2020 070820 20.60 

CHECK 4210001 TOTAL: 20.60 

4210002 07/09/2020 PRTD 3984 City of Troy 062920SPTPR 06/29/2020 070820 13.89 

062920WSTPR 06/29/2020 070820 24.41 

CHECK 4210002 TOTAL: 38.30 

4210003 07/09/2020 PRTD 2047 City of Wood River 070620SPWRTC 07/02/2020 070820 52.19 

070620WSWRTC 07/02/2020 070820 28.78 

CHECK 4210003 TOTAL: 80.97 

4210004 07/09/2020 PRTD 1220 Illinois American Wa 062520GCTC 06/25/2020 070820 237.14 

CHECK 4210004 TOTAL: 237.14 

4210005 07/09/2020 PRTD 1220 Illinois American Wa 070720AHSRIR 07/07/2020 070820 375.39 

CHECK 4210005 TOTAL: 375.39 

4210006 07/09/2020 PRTD 1220 Illinois American Wa 1220ILRt3PR 06/22/2020 070820 260.19 

CHECK 4210006 TOTAL: 260.19 

4210007 07/09/2020 PRTD 1051 Pontoon Beach Public 070220-1 07/02/2020 070820 264.18 

070220-2 07/02/2020 070820 664.10 

070220BW 07/02/2020 070820 584.14 

070220N 07/02/2020 070820 23.03 

070220SS 07/02/2020 070820 785.23 

070220T 07/02/2020 070820 27.56 

CHECK 4210007 TOTAL: 2,348.24 

4210008 07/09/2020 PRTD 1053 Special Service Area 070120 07/01/2020 070820 977.43 

070120BW 07/01/2020 070820 541.79 





































12 months ending 6/30/21
$18,165,000 

44.16%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$15,967,000 

38.82%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 

17.02%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
As of June 30, 2020

12 months ending 6/30/21
$18,165,000 

39.38%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$15,967,000 

34.61%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 

15.17%

12 months ending 6/30/23 
- funds available to be
invested when rates

increase
$5,000,000 

10.84%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$12,000,000 

26.01%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
As of June 30, 2020

Including Funds Available for Investment



$6,250,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$4,915,000
$5,275,000

$3,442,000

$4,250,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$0
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

September
2020

December
2020

March
2021

June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March
2022

June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March
2023

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
As of June 30, 2020

2.44%

2.87% 2.90%

2.59%
2.69%

2.96%
3.05%

2.92%

2.14% 2.10%

0.00%
0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

September
2020

December
2020

March 2021 June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March 2022 June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March 2023

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter
As of June 30, 2020



12 months ending 6/30/21
$19,535,000 

44.91%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$16,967,000 

39.00%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 

16.09%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
Proposed as of July 31, 2020

12 months ending 6/30/21
$19,535,000 

40.28%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$16,967,000 

34.98%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 

14.43%

12 months ending 6/30/23 -
funds available to be 
invested when rates 

increase
$5,000,000 

10.31%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$12,000,000 

24.74%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
Proposed as of July 31, 2020

Including Funds Available for Investment



$4,620,000 
$5,000,000 $5,000,000 $4,915,000 

$6,275,000 

$3,442,000 

$4,250,000 

$3,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$0 
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

September
2020

December
2020

March
2021

June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March
2022

June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March
2023

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
Proposed as of July 31, 2020

2.36%

1.88%

2.44%
2.59%

2.39%

2.96%
3.05%

2.92%

2.14% 2.10%

0.00%
0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

September
2020

December
2020

March 2021 June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March 2022 June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March 2023

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter
Proposed as of July 31, 2020



12 months ending 6/30/21
$16,915,000 

41.38%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$16,967,000 

41.50%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 …

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
Proposed as of August 31, 2020

12 months ending 6/30/21
$16,915,000 

36.87%

12 months ending 6/30/22
$16,967,000 …

12 months ending 6/30/23
$7,000,000 

15.26%

12 months ending 6/30/23 -
funds available to be invested 

when rates increase
$5,000,000 

10.90%

12 months ending 6/30/23
$12,000,000 

26.15%

MCT Investment Maturities by Year
Proposed as of August 31, 2020

Including Funds Available for Investment



$2,000,000

$5,000,000 $5,000,000 $4,915,000

$6,275,000

$3,442,000

$4,250,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$0
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

September
2020

December
2020

March
2021

June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March
2022

June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March
2023

MCT Investment Maturities by Quarter
Proposed as of August 31, 2020

2.30%

1.88%

2.44%
2.59%

2.39%

2.96%
3.05%

2.92%

2.14% 2.10%

0.00%
0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

September
2020

December
2020

March 2021 June 2021 September
2021

December
2021

March 2022 June 2022 September
2022

December
2022

March 2023

MCT Investment Weighted Average Rate of Return by Quarter
Proposed as of August 31, 2020



I. Scope

Investment Policy 

Madison County Mass Transit District 

This policy applies to the investment of all operating funds of the Madison County

Mass Transit District (District) under the jurisdiction of the District. This policy will

also apply to any new funds or temporary funds placed under the jurisdiction of the

District. The Illinois Compiled Statues will take precedence except where this policy
is more restrictive wherein this policy will take precedence. All transactions involving

the financial assets and related activity of the foregoing funds shall be administered in

accordance with the provisions of this policy.

1. Pooling of funds
Except for cash in certain restricted and special funds, the District will
consolidate cash balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings.
Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their
respective participation and in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

2. External Management of Funds

Investment through external programs, facilities and professionals operating in
a manner consistent with this policy will constitute compliance.

II. General Objectives
The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety,

liquidity and yield:

1. Safety
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to

mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.

a. Credit Risk

The District will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure

of the security issuer or backer, by:

• Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers,
intermediaries, and advisors with which the District will do

business.
• Diversifying the portfolio so that potential losses on individual

securities will be minimized.



















RESOLUTION 21-01 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND AMENDMENT OF 

DOWNSTATE OPERATING ASSISTANCE GRANT AGREEMENT 

WITH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

WHEREAS, the provision of public transportation service is essential to the people of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Downstate Public Transportation Act (30 ILCS 740/2-1 et seq.) ("Act") authorizes 

the State of Illinois, acting by and through the Illinois Department of Transportation, to provide 

grants and make funds available to assist in the development and operation of public transportation 

systems; and 

WHEREAS, grants for said funds will impose certain obligations upon the receipt, including 

provisions by it of the local share of funds necessary to cover costs not covered by funds provided 

under the Downstate Public Transportation Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT, MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS THAT: 

1. Madison County Mass Transit District ("Grantee") enter into a Downstate Public
Transportation Operating Assistance Agreement, Agreement No. 5228 (21-1141-20716),
("Agreement") with the State of Illinois and amend such Agreement, if necessary, for Fiscal
Year 2021, in order to obtain grant assistance under the provisions of the Illinois Downstate
Public Transportation Act (30 ILCS 740/2-1, et. seq.).

2. Madison County Mass Transit District Board Chairman or Vice Chairman, and/or Managing
Director are hereby authorized and directed to execute the Agreement or its amendment(s)
to the Agreement on behalf of the Madison County Mass Transit District for such assistance
for Fiscal Year 2021 .

3. Madison County Mass Transit District Board Chairman or Vice Chairman, and/or Managing
Director are hereby authorized to provide such information and file such documents as may
be required to perform the Agreement and to request and receive the grant funding for Fiscal
Year 2021.

4. While participating in said operating assistance program, the Madison County Mass Transit
District shall provide all required local matching funds.

ADOPTED, by the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison County, 
Illinois, on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 

da, Chairman 

Christopher C. Guy �� AJknP.Adomrte --------



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the 
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am 
the keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, July 30, 2020, a 
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, 
and that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said 
Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT, MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 
FOLLOWSTHA T: 

1. Madison County Mass Transit District ("Grantee") enter into a Downstate Public
Transportation Operating Assistance Agreement, Agreement No. 5228 (21-1141-
20716), ("Agreement") with the State of Illinois and amend such Agreement, if
necessary, for Fiscal Year 2021, in order to obtain grant assistance under the
provisions of the Illinois Downstate Public Transportation Act (30 ILCS 740/2-1, et.

seq.).

2. Madison County Mass Transit District Board Chairman or Vice Chairman, and/or
Managing Director are hereby authorized and directed to execute the Agreement or
its amendment(s) to the Agreement on behalf of the Madison County Mass Transit
District for such assistance for Fiscal Year 2021.

3. Madison County Mass Transit District Board Chairman or Vice Chairman, and/or
Managing Director are hereby authorized to provide such information and file such
documents as may be required to perform the Agreement and to request and
receive the grant funding for Fiscal Year 2021.

4. While participating in said operating assistance program, the Madison County Mass
Transit District shall provide all required local matching funds.

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 



OPINION OF COUNSEL 

I, Tonya Genovese, the undersigned, am an attorney licensed by and duly admitted to 
practice law in the State of Illinois and am counsel and attorney for the Madison County 
Mass Transit District ("Grantee"). In this capacity, my opinion has been requested 
regarding the eligibility of the Grantee for grant assistance under the provisions of the 
Illinois Downstate Public Transportation Act, 30 ILCS 740/2-1 et. seq. ("Act"). I have also 
reviewed the Downstate Operating Assistance Grant Agreement, Agreement No. 5228 (21-
1141-20716), ("Agreement") tendered by the State of Illinois ("State") to the Grantee, and I 
hereby find the following: 

1. The Grantee is an eligible "Participant" as defined in the Act.

2. There are no provisions in the Grantee's charter, by-laws, or in the laws or
rules of the State of Illinois, United States of America, or any unit of local
government that preclude or prohibit the Grantee from entering into such
Agreement.

3. The Grantee is fully empowered and authorized to enter into the Agreement
and that Agreement, when executed by both parties, will be legally binding
upon the Grantee and its successors and assigns.

4. I have no knowledge of any pending or threatened litigation, in either Federal
or State court, which would adversely affect the Agreement or prevent the
Grantee from contracting with the State for the purpose of receiving a
Downstate Operating Assistance Grant.

Based on the foregoing, I am of the opinion that the Grantee is an eligible Participant under 
the provisions of the Act, and that it is fully empowered and authorized to accept the grant 
from the State. 

Signature: 
T�gal Counsel 

Date: 



Agreement No. 5228 (21-1141-20716) 

INTER-GOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

The Illinois Department of Transportation (Grantor) with its principal office 

2300 South Dirksen Parkway, Springfield IL. 62764 

and Madison County Mass Transit District (Grantee) with its principal 

One Transit Way, P.O. Box 7500, Granite City, IL 62040 

and payment address (if different than principal office) at N/A 
-----------------------

hereby enter into this Inter-Governmental Grant Agreement (Agreement), pursuant to the Intergovernmental Cooperation 

Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq. Grantor and Grantee are collectively referred to herein as "Parties" or individually as a "Party." 

PART ONE - THE UNIFORM TERMS 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Parties to perform consistent with all Exhibits and attachments hereto and pursuant 

to the duties and responsibilities imposed by Grantor under the laws of the state of Illinois and in accordance with the 

terms, conditions and provisions hereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual agreements contained herein, and for other 

good and valuable consideration, the value, receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree 

as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

AWARD AND GRANTEE SPECIFIC INFORMATION AND CERTIFICATION 

1.1 DUNS Number. SAM Registration: Nature of Entity. Under penalties of perjury, Grantee certifies that 

131055548 is Grantee's correct DUNS Number, that N/A is Grantee's correct 

UEI, if applicable, that 371099038 is Grantee's correct FEIN or Social Security Number, and that 

Grantee has an active State registration and SAM registration. Grantee is doing business as a (check one): 

D Individual D Pharmacy-Non Corporate 

D Sole Proprietorship D Pharmacy/Funeral Home/Cemetery Corp. 

D Partnership D Tax Exempt 

D Corporation (includes Not for Profit) D Limited Liability Company (select applicable 

D Medical Corporation tax classification) 

IZI Governmental Unit D P = partnership 

D Estate or Trust D C = corporation 

If Grantee has not received a payment from the state of Illinois in the last two years, Grantee must submit a W-9 tax form 

with this Agreement. 

State of Illinois 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL GRANT AGREEMENT (U-IGA) FISCAL YEAR 2021/2520 

Page 1 of 42 





















































































GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17)

State of Illinois
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

Section A: State of Illinois Funds:

REVENUES Total Revenue 

 $25,797,200.00 

Budget Expenditure Categories OMB Uniform Guidance 
Federal Awards Reference 2 CFR 200 

Total Expenditures 

$ $10,576,085.00 

 MUST EQUAL REVENUE TOTALS ABOVE



State of Illinois
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17)

SECTION A - Continued - Indirect Cost Rate Information 

1. 

NOTE: (If this 
option is selected, please, provide basic Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement in area designated below.) 

Your organization may not have a Federally Negotiated Cost Rate Agreement. Therefore, in order for your organization to be reimbursed for the Indirect Costs 
from the State of Illinois your organization must either: 

a. Negotiate an Indirect Cost Rate with the State of Illinois' Indirect Cost Unit with guidance from your State Cognizant Agency on an annual basis;
b. Elect to use the de minimis rate of 10% modified for total direct costs (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely on State of Illinois awards; or
c. Use a Restricted Rate designated by programmatic or statutory policy (see Notice of Funding Opportunity for Restricted Rate Programs).

NOTE: (If this option is 
selected, please provide basic Indirect Cost Rate information in area designated below.) 

Note: (Check with you State of Illinois Agency for information regarding reimbursement of indirect costs while your proposal is being 
negotiated.) 

[Note: Your Organization must be eligible, see 2 CFR 200.414 (f), and submit documentation on the calculation of MTDC within 
your Budget Narrative under Indirect Costs.] 

Basic Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Information (Use only if option 1 or 2(a), above is selected.) 

 To:  Approving Federal or State Agency: 

Indirect Cost Rate  The Distribution Base Is: 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17)

Section B:  Non-State of Illinois Funds 

REVENUES Total Revenue 

Budget Expenditure Categories 
OMB Uniform Guidance 

Federal Awards Reference 2 CFR 200  Total Expenditures 

 MUST EQUAL REVENUE TOTALS ABOVE 





State of Illinois
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17)

FFATA Data Collection Form (if needed by agency) 

Under certain circumstances, sub-recipient must provide names and total compensation of its top 5 highly compensated officials. Please answer the following questions and 
follow the instructions. 

Q1. 

Q2. 

Please provide names and total compensation of the top five officials: 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

1). Personnel (Salaries and Wages) 2 CFR 200.430



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

2). Fringe Benefits (2 CFR 200.431



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

3). Travel (2 CFR 200.474



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

4). Equipment (2 CFR 200.439) 

NA NA NA 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

5). Supplies (2 CFR 200.94) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

6). Contractual Services (2 CFR 200.318) & Subawards (200.92) 

subawards

Please also note the differences between subaward, contract, and contractor (vendor): 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

7). Consultant Services and Expenses (2 CFR 200.459) 

Consultant Services (Fees): 
Consultant Expenses: 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

8). Construction 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

9). Occupancy - Rent and Utilities (2 CFR 200.465) 

NOTE



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

10). Research & Development (R&D) (2 CFR 200.87) 

Definition: 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

11). Telecommunications 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

12). Training and Education (2 CFR 200.472) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

13). Direct Administrative Costs (2 CFR 200.413 (c)) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

14). Other or Miscellaneous Costs 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

15). A. GRANT EXCLUSIVE LINE ITEM 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

15). B. GRANT EXCLUSIVE LINE ITEM 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

15) C. GRANT EXCLUSIVE LINE ITEM



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

16). Indirect Cost (2 CFR 200.414) 

NA NA NA NA 

NA NA NA NA 



State of Illinois 
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17) 

Budget Narrative Summary

Budget Category State Non-State Total 

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 



State of Illinois
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

GOMBGATU-3002-(R-02-17)

For State Use Only

Budget Revision Approved:

David Maziarz 06/16/20

$39,688,000





MCT Trails Wayfinding Plan
July 30, 2020



MCT Trails Wayfinding Plan

• Phase 1: MCT Trails intersection identification

• Phase 2: Crossroads signage

• Phase 3: In-Community signage approaching MCT Trails

• Phase 4: Mile-Markers, Interpretive Signage (Historical,
Cultural, Natural)











MCT Trails Wayfinding Plan
July 30, 2020



Page 1 of 4 

Proposal for Alternative Transit Solutions 
To: MCT Board of Trustees 

From: SJ Morrison 

Date: February 28, 2020 

SUMMARY: 
Madison County Transit (MCT) Marketing & Planning staff are considering the following alternative 
transit solutions to increase ridership, improve access to jobs, and provide more efficient service for 
riders.

EXPRESS SERVICE TO GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTER (GCC) 
• Create weekday express routes from Alton and Collinsville to Gateway Commerce Center
• Operate service during AM and PM GCC peak shift times only

o Collinsville Station to GCC: 80 minute headways to and from Collinsville Station in both peaks
o Alton Station to GCC: 90 minute headways to and from Alton Station in both peaks

Considerations 
• Responds to demand from areas in the transit district that are hard to reach without multiple transfers
• Decreases travel time and limits transfers to GCC from Alton and Collinsville
• Increases the number of drivers and buses needed during peak operating hours
• Increases annual cost to MCT and annual manpower requirement

Sample Schedule 

Alton to GCC Express Collinsville to GCC Express 
Alton 

Station 

Wood 
River 

Station 
Unilever Amazon WWT Hershey GCC 

West 
Collinsville 

Station Unilever Amazon WWT Hershey GCC West 

5:00 AM 5:12 AM 5:29 AM 5:34 AM 5:38 AM 5:41 AM 5:50 AM 5:00 AM 5:23 AM 5:28 AM 5:32 AM 5:35 AM 5:44 AM 

6:30 AM 6:42 AM 6:59 AM 7:04 AM 7:08 AM 7:11 AM 7:20 AM 6:20 AM 6:43 AM 6:48 AM 6:52 AM 6:55 AM 7:04 AM 

8:00 AM 8:12 AM 8:29 AM 8:34 AM 8:38 AM 8:41 AM 8:50 AM 7:40 AM 8:03 AM 8:08 AM 8:12 AM 8:15 AM 8:24 AM 

4:05 PM 4:17 PM  - - -  -  4:34 PM 4:00 PM  - - -  -  4:23 PM 

5:30 PM 5:42 PM  - -  - -  5:59 PM 5:20 PM  - -  - -  5:43 PM 

GCC to Alton Express GCC to Collinsville Express 

GCC West Unilever Amazon  WWT Hershey 
Wood 
River 

Station 

Alton 
Station GCC West Unilever Amazon WWT Hershey Collinsville 

Station 

5:52 AM  - -  -  - 6:10 AM 6:22 AM 12:02 AM -  -  -  -  12:25 AM 

7:22 AM -  - -  -  7:40 AM 7:52 AM 1:22 AM -  -   - -  1:45 AM 

3:15 PM 3:17 PM 3:22 PM 3:26 PM 3:29 PM 3:47 PM 3:59 PM 3:15 PM 3:17 PM 3:22 PM 3:26 PM 3:29 PM 3:52 PM 

4:40 PM 4:42 PM 4:47 PM 4:51 PM 4:54 PM 5:12 PM 5:24 PM 4:35 PM 4:37 PM 4:42 PM 4:46 PM 4:49 PM 5:12 PM 

6:05 PM 6:07 PM 6:12 PM 6:16 PM 6:19 PM 6:37 PM 6:49 PM 6:00 PM 6:02 PM 6:07 PM 6:11 PM 6:14 PM 6:37 PM 



Page 2 of 4 

Estimated Service Hours & Costs 

Gateway Commerce Center Express Service (Collinsville/Alton) 
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Increase 2.01 
Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) Increase 4177.75 

Annual Gross Cost Increase $370,273.98 
MINUS Downstate Operating Assistance Program (DOAP) ($240,678.09) 
MINUS Estimated Fare Recovery ($15,062.80) 
Annual Net Cost Increase to MCT $114,533.10 

AIRPORT EXPRESS - PILOT PROGRAM 
• Create service from Eastport Plaza in Collinsville and the Glen Carbon Park & Ride lot to Lambert Airport
• Operate service every 95 minutes between Madison County and airport

o Weekday/Saturday:  5:05 AM -  8:47 PM
 10 trips

o Sunday: 7:35 AM – 6:32 PM
 7 trips

• Service Bus Port located near Terminal 1 (American, United, Delta)

Considerations 
• Provides limited service to airport from communities in MCT service area
• Creates safety issue due to lack of luggage racks. There isn’t an area to secure luggage on buses.
• Provides a one seat ride from central county to and from the airport
• Provides service to Terminal 1 Bus Port only due to weight restrictions at Terminal 2
• Increases annual cost to MCT and increases manpower requirement
• Increases number of buses needed; current fleet won’t be expanded until August 2020
• Requires execution of intergovernmental agreement between MCT and City of St. Louis
• Requires permit and fee of $225 - $245 per month
• Creates paratransit obligation along route corridor
• Currently MCT does not allow overnight parking at its park and ride lots – could create security

implications

Unknowns 
• Demand for service
• Title IV implications
• Extent of paratransit obligation
• Reliability of schedule due to traffic patterns at peak commute times on I-270 and I-170
• Duration of pilot program

See next page for sample schedule. 



Page 3 of 4 

Sample Schedule 

Lambert Airport Express - WEEKDAY/SATURDAY 

Eastport 
Park-n-Ride 

Glen Carbon 
Park-n-Ride 

Airport   
Bus Port 

Glen Carbon 
Park-n-Ride 

Eastport 
Park-n-Ride 

5:05 AM 5:15 AM 5:50 AM 6:22 AM 6:32 AM 
6:40 AM 6:50 AM 7:25 AM 7:57 AM 8:07 AM 
8:15 AM 8:25 AM 9:00 AM 9:32 AM 9:42 AM 
9:50 AM 10:00 AM 10:35 AM 11:07 AM 11:17 AM 

11:25 AM 11:35 AM 12:10 PM 12:42 PM 12:52 PM 
1:00 PM 1:10 PM 1:45 PM 2:17 PM 2:27 PM 
2:35 PM 2:45 PM 3:20 PM 3:52 PM 4:02 PM 
4:10 PM 4:20 PM 4:55 PM 5:27 PM 5:37 PM 
5:45 PM 5:55 PM 6:30 PM 7:02 PM 7:12 PM 
7:20 PM 7:30 PM 8:05 PM 8:37 PM 8:47 PM 

Lambert Airport Express - SUNDAY 

Eastport 
Park-n-Ride 

Glen Carbon 
Park-n-Ride 

Airport   
Bus Port 

Glen Carbon 
Park-n-Ride 

Eastport 
Park-n-Ride 

7:35 AM 7:45 AM 8:20 AM 8:52 AM 9:02 AM 
9:10 AM 9:20 AM 9:55 AM 10:27 AM 10:37 AM 

10:45 AM 10:55 AM 11:30 AM 12:02 PM 12:12 PM 
12:20 PM 12:30 PM 1:05 PM 1:37 PM 1:47 PM 
1:55 PM 2:05 PM 2:40 PM 3:12 PM 3:22 PM 
3:30 PM 3:40 PM 4:15 PM 4:47 PM 4:57 PM 
5:05 PM 5:15 PM 5:50 PM 6:22 PM 6:32 PM 

Estimated Service Hours & Costs 

Lambert Airport Express 
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Increase 2.71 
Vehicle Service Hours (VSH) Increase 5629 

Annual Gross Cost Increase $498,865.77 
Annual Cost of Airport Permits $2,940.00 
MINUS Downstate Operating Assistance Program (DOAP) $    - 
MINUS Estimated Fare Received ($38,513.96) 
Annual Net Cost Increase for MCT $460,351.81 



Page 4 of 4 

#13 TROY – GLEN CARBON SHUTTLE 

The #13 Troy-Glen Carbon Shuttle serves Troy, Anderson Hospital, downtown Glen Carbon and Glen Carbon 
Walmart. The #13 ridership has been in decline for the past two years and averages roughly 600 passengers 
a month. The route currently lacks destinations within Troy or Glen Carbon that generate ridership, 
operates infrequently, and has gaps in morning and afternoon service. 

Solutions: 
• Restructure service to better serve current riders by eliminating unproductive portions of the route
• Increase frequency and remove morning and afternoon gaps in service
• Add destinations, neighborhoods to increase service
• Transition to a “flex-ride” or “deviated fixed route”
• Survey passengers regarding transportation needs
• Eliminate the route



RESOLUTION 21-02 

AUTHORIZING MANAGING DIRECTOR TO SIGN NORMAL AND ROUTINE 

DOCUMENTS FOR THE MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) is responsible for the 
provision of public mass transportation services pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass 
Transit District Act, as approved on July 21, 1959, as amended (70 ILCS 3610 et. seq.); 
and, 

WHEREAS, it is incumbent upon the Managing Director to ensure that the normal and 
routine business of the Madison County Mass Transit District is carried out on behalf of the 
Board of Trustees and the residents of Madison County, Illinois; and, 

WHEREAS, carrying out the operation of the Madison County Mass Transit District requires 
the timely authorization and execution of normal and routine documents, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman Ronald L. Jedda, Vice Chairman J. Kelly Schmidt, 
and/or SJ Morrison, Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, 
Madison County, Illinois, shall be authorized to sign normal and routine documents, including 
but not limited to: purchase orders, contracts, contract modifications and/or options up to 
$250,000, grant applications and reimbursement requests, maintenance agreements, 
easemenUlicense agreements, intergovernmental agreements, and memorandums of 
understanding on behalf of the District. 

ADOPTED, by the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison 
County, Illinois, on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 

Q,vi(;}LL 
onald L. Jecfu: Chairman 

��} Christopher C. Guy Allen P. Adomite 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the 
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am 
the keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, July 30, 2020, a 
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, 
and that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said 
Resolution. 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman Ronald L. Jedda, Vice Chairman J. Kelly Schmidt, 
and/or SJ Morrison, Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, 
Madison County, Illinois, shall be authorized to sign normal and routine documents, including 
but not limited to: purchase orders, contracts, contract modifications and/or options up to 
$250,000, grant applications and reimbursement requests, maintenance agreements, 
easement/license agreements, intergovernmental agreements, and memorandums of 
understanding on behalf of the District. 

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 

�1n-J1;ltou 



RESOLUTION 21-03 

AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE PUBLIC 

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) was created in December 1980 by resolution 
of the Madison County Board pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District Act, approved July 21, 
1959, as amended (70 ILCS 3610/1 et. seq.); and, 

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) published the Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Final Rule, which requires recipients and subrecipients that receive federal 
funds under FTA's Urbanized Area Formula Grants to develop safety plans that include the processes and 
procedures to implement Safety Management Systems (SMS); and 

WHEREAS, each PTASP must include processes and procedures for the transit agency's SMS, which 
consists of four main elements (1) Safety Management, (2) Safety Risk Management, (3) Safety Assurance, 
and (4) Safety Promotion; Include performance targets based on the safety performance criteria established 
under the National Public Transportation Safety Plan. Address all requirements and standards as set forth in 
FTA's PTASP and establish a process and timeline for conducting an annual review and update. 

WHEREAS, the Trustees, after due consideration, find the adoption of a Public Transportation Safety Plan is 
in the best interest of the residents of Madison County and is desirable for the welfare of the Madison County 
Mass Transit District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON COUNTY 
MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. The Madison County Mass Transit District adopt the Public Transit Safety Plan, as set forth in
Attachment A for the District in order to maintain, manage, and submit annual targets in the best
interest of the residents of Madison County and is desirable for the welfare of the Madison County
Mass Transit District.

2. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ Morrison, Managing Director,
of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized to take any and all actions as
reasonably necessary to execute, complete, and perform all obligations associated with the Operating
Budget as amended and the intent and purposes of this Resolution, including the preambles hereto, on
behalf of and in a manner most beneficial to the Madison County Mass Transit District.

ADOPTED by the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison County, Illinois, on this thirtieth of January 
2020. 

a, Chairman 

�

y

�

--

Christopher C. Guy Allen P. Adomite 

Form: 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the Board 
of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am the keeper 
of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, July 30, 2020, a 
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, and 
that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. The Madison County Mass Transit District adopt the Public Transit Safety Plan, as set
forth in Attachment A for the District in order to maintain, manage, and submit annual
targets in the best interest of the residents of Madison County and is desirable for the
welfare of the Madison County Mass Transit District.

2. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ Morrison,
Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized
to take any and all actions as reasonably necessary to execute, complete, and perform
all obligations associated with the Operating Budget as amended and the intent and
purposes of this Resolution, including the preambles hereto, on behalf of and in a
manner most beneficial to the Madison County Mass Transit District.

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 



1

Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan

Madison County Mass 
Transit District (MCT)



2

July 2020
Table of Contents
Section 1. Transit Agency Information........................................................................................ 3

General Information ................................................................................................................... 3

Section 2. Plan Development, Approval, and Updates ............................................................... 5

Section 3. Safety Performance Targets...................................................................................... 6

Section 4. Safety Management Policy........................................................................................ 7

Safety Management Policy Statement ....................................................................................... 7

Safety Management Policy Communication ..............................................................................10

Authorities, Accountabilities, and Responsibilities .....................................................................10

Accountable Executive (AE):..............................................................................................10

Chief Safety Officer (CSO): ................................................................................................11

Employee Safety Reporting Program........................................................................................11

Section 5: Safety Performance Targets and Measures .............................................................11

Section 6: Safety Risk Management .........................................................................................11

Section 7: Safety Assurance .....................................................................................................11

Section 8: Safety Promotion......................................................................................................12

Section 9: Additional Information...............................................................................................12

Section 10: Definitions of Terms Used in the Safety Plan..........................................................13

Section 11. Commonly Used Acronyms ....................................................................................15



3

Section 1. Transit Agency Information

General Information
Madison County Transit Accountable Executive: SJ Morrison

One Transit Way, PO Box 7500 Chief Safety Officer: Tony Lafata

Granite City, IL 62040

Phone: 618.797.4600

Modes of Service: Fixed Route Bus (MB), Demand Response (DR),

FTA Funding Sources: FTA Section 5307, 5311 5310

Modes of Service Directly Provided: None

Overview 

The Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT) is a municipal corporation organized in 1980 
under the Local Mass Transit District Act (70 ILCS 3610) of the Illinois State Statutes. MCT 
provides a vast array of multi-modal transportation services. 

MCT Service Area 

The MCT District service area encompasses 16 member townships (shaded in green on the 
map below), covering 482 square miles including the incorporated municipalities of Alton, 
Bethalto, Collinsville, East Alton, Edwardsville, Glen Carbon, Godfrey, Granite City, Hartford, 
Highland, Madison, Maryville, Pontoon Beach, Roxana, South Roxana, St. Jacob, Troy, Venice 
and Wood River.

MCT Services 

MCT provides a diverse array of transportation services including a fixed-route public transit 
system, complementary Paratransit service for eligible elderly and disabled residents, a 137-

carpool/vanpool program. 

94 fixed-route buses on 27 routes carrying more than 2 million passengers each year
29 vehicles in Runabout Paratransit service carrying more than 60,000 registered
individuals annually
137 miles of scenic Class I bikeways known as the MCT Trails
5 passenger transfer stations: Alton, Collinsville, Edwardsville, Granite City and Wood
River
19,000 commuters in the RideFinders ride-matching database, 332 RideFinders
vanpoolers and 5,255 registered carpoolers



4

Working in conjunction with other Madison County and St. Louis area organizations, including 
Metro, MCT provides an important link in the chain of seamless regional transportation services.

Contracted Service Information:

Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT) is a municipal corporation organized pursuant to 
the Local Mass Transit District Act (70 ILCS 3610) of the Illinois State statutes. MCT is a grant 
recipient and does receive FTA 5307 funds. MCT contracts with The Agency for Community 
Transit (ACT) for the operation of all public transit (fixed route and paratransit) services in 
Madison County.

The Agency Safety Plan addresses all applicable requirements and standards as set forth in 



5

Section 2. Plan Development, Approval, and Updates

Name of Entity That 
Drafted This Plan

Illinois Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Madison County Mass 
Transit District (MCT)

Signature by the 
Accountable Executive

Signature of Accountable Executive Date of Signature

Approval by the Board 
of Directors or an 
Equivalent Authority

Name of Individual/Entity That Approved This 
Plan

Date of Approval

Relevant Documentation (title and location)

Certification of 
Compliance

Name of Individual/Entity That Certified This 
Plan Date of Certification

Relevant Documentation (title and location)

Version Number and Updates

Record the complete history of successive versions of this plan.

Version 
Number

Section/Pages Affected Reason for Change Date Issued

Annual Review and Update of the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan

Describe the process and timeline for conducting an annual review and update of the Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan.

The Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT) provides no direct transit services. All operations services for public 
transit are contracted by Agency for Community Transit (ACT). The transit district provides oversight and contract 
management and meets a minimum of once a month with contractor to review their Safety Management Systems,
compliance, and contractual obligations.



6

Section 3. Safety Performance Targets

Safety Performance Targets Specify safety performance targets based on the safety 
performance measures established under the National Public Transportation Safety Plan. The
following targets were developed based on the past three years of transit safety data 
collected by the Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT). 

Mode of Service
Fatalities 

(Total)

Fatalities 
(per 100k 

VRM)

Injuries 
(Total)

Injuries (per
100k VRM)

Safety 
Events 
(Total)

Safety 
Events (per
100k VRM)

System 
Reliability

(VRM/failures)

Fixed Route 
(MB) 0.00 0.00 13.00 0.34 13.67 0.36 20,833

Paratransit/ 
Demand 
Response 
(DR)

0.00 0.00 0.67 0.11 2.00 0.33 24,121

Vanpool (VP) 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.04 2.67 0.32 239,569

Safety Performance Target Coordination

Describe the coordination with the State and Metropolitan Planning Organization(s) (MPO) in the selection of 
State and MPO safety performance targets.

Once targets are developed as part of the Plan update in July of each year, MCT will share and discuss those targets and 
amendments with the East-West Gateway MPO and submit to IDOT at requested time.

Targets Transmitted 
to the State

State Entity Name Date Targets Transmitted

Illinois Department of Transportation 

Targets Transmitted 
to the Metropolitan 
Planning 
Organization(s)

Metropolitan Planning Organization Name Date Targets Transmitted

East-West Gateway MPO



7

Section 4. Safety Management Policy

Safety Management Policy Statement

Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT) strives to provide safe, reliable, comfortable, and 
innovative transportation options to every member of the community. The Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) has been developed to integrate safety into all MCT operations. 
By using the procedures contained in the PTASP, MCT can continue to improve the safety and 
security of its transit contracting services.

This PTASP describes the policies, procedures, and requirements to be followed by MCT
management, to ensure a safe environment for contracted transit employees, riders, and the 
general public. The goal of this program is to eliminate the human and fiscal cost of avoidable 
personal injury and vehicle accidents.

MCT and the service contractor have a responsibility under the PTASP. The Accountable 
Executive will provide the continuing support necessary to achieve the PTASP objectives. A key 
to the success of this effort is for employees to be aware that they are accountable for safely 
performing the requirements of their contract. The success of the program also depends on all
employees actively identifying potential hazards and making a commitment to the safety of 
others.

MCT and its contractor must be aware that decisions and actions often affect the safety of those 
in other operations. By following the processes described in the PTASP, MCT will continue to 
monitor performance and the safety of the system while creating a culture of safety.

MCT commitment is to:

Support the management of safety through the provision of appropriate
resources that will result in an organizational culture that fosters safe practices,
encourages effective employee safety reporting and communication, and actively
manages safety with the same attention to results as the attention to the results
of the other management systems of the organization;

Integrate the management of safety among the primary responsibilities of all
staff;

Clearly define for all staff, managers, and employees alike, their accountabilities

the performance of MCT safety management system;

Establish and operate hazard identification and analysis, and safety risk
evaluation activities--including an employee safety reporting program as a
fundamental source for safety concerns and hazard identification--to eliminate or
mitigate the safety risks of the consequences of hazards resulting from MCT
operations or activities to a point which is consistent with an acceptable level of
safety performance;



8

Ensure that MCT and ACT will take no action against any employee who
discloses a safety concern through the employee safety reporting program,
unless disclosure indicates, beyond any reasonable doubt, an illegal act, gross
negligence, or a deliberate or willful disregard of regulations or procedures;

Comply with, and wherever possible exceed, legislative and regulatory
requirements and standards;

Ensure that sufficient skilled and trained human resources are available to
implement safety management processes;

Ensure that staff provides adequate and appropriate safety-related information
and training, are competent in safety management matters, and are allocated
only tasks commensurate with their skills;

Establish and measure safety performance against realistic and data-driven
safety performance indicators and safety performance targets;

Continually improve safety performance through management processes that
ensure that appropriate safety management action is taken and is effective; and

Ensure externally supplied systems and services to support operations are
delivered, meeting established safety performance standards.

MCT Goals for Safety are established as follows:

In collaboration with ACT, design, construct, test, and operate a transportation
system that achieves an optimum level of safety performance of other transit
systems of a similar size in the United States.

Identify and evaluate, then eliminate or control hazards to employees, customers,
and the public.

Ensure ACT meets or exceeds all government and industry occupational health
and safety standards and practices.

The objectives of the PTASP are the means to achieving its goals. They also provide a method 
of evaluating the effectiveness of MCT safety efforts. The PTASP objectives for MCT are:

Integrate safety management and hazard control practices.

Assign responsibilities for developing, updating, complying with, and enforcing safety
policies, procedures, and requirements.

Verify compliance with safety policies, procedures, and requirements through
performance evaluations, accident/incident trends, and contract oversight.

Investigate all accidents/incidents, including identifying and documenting the causes
for the purpose of implementing corrective action to prevent a recurrence.

Increase investigation and systematic documentation of near misses.



9

Identify, analyze, and resolve safety hazards in a timely manner.

Minimize system modifications during the operational phase by establishing and
utilizing safety controls at system design and procurement phases.

Ensure that system modifications do not create new hazards.

Train employees and supervisors on the safety components of their job functions.

MCT takes these commitments seriously as the lives of MCT riders, employees and the general 
public depend on the transit district ability to oversee contractor s culture of safety. 

_____________________________________________________
Accountable Executive

_____________________________________________________
Date



10

Safety Management Policy Communication
MCT realizes the importance of ensuring employees and riders are aware of safety 
management policies and procedures to effectively manage the day to day operations. 
Staff meets weekly to review performance and safety and again monthly to review trends in 
safety data. In addition, staff are constantly evaluating existing policies and procedures to verify 
their effectiveness. To do this, MCT seeks input from all staff to determine if change is 
necessary based on trends, data analysis, operational changes or new assets.

MCT provides safety instruction, safety notices and processes to improve risk management as 
well as collects safety data and monitors performance and safety events to identify trends where 
safety is below agency standards. MCT ensures ACT is following the company-wide Agency 
Safety Plan (ASP) which has been provided to MCT.

Depending on the importance of the policy or Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) change, an 
acknowledgement signature is required of each employee verifying their understanding of the 
change. 

The contract with ACT began in 1986 and oversight is conducted daily with MCT co-located with 
ACT. 

Riders: If a rider policy is changed or added, staff notifies riders through the following methods:

Notice posted on vehicle and facilities including effective date and who to contact for 
more information
Changes to digital rider guidance including schedules and ride guides as appropriate
Public Meetings
Social Media, Website Service Notices, E-News, and Text Alerts program.
Any services impacted by policies changes will include outreach as required by Federal 
Guidance.

Authorities, Accountabilities, and Responsibilities
As mentioned in the Safety Policy Statement, the ultimate authority for the success of this 
PTASP falls to the Accountable Executive (AE), department managers, as well as employees 
fulfilling their commitment to safety on a day-to-day basis supporting the AE.

Accountable Executive (AE): The AE will determine, based on feedback from staff, the level 
of Safety Management System (SMS) principals to maintain to ensure a safe work environment, 
rider experience and community safety. MCT ing contracts that will 
enable contract management to provide the tools and training needed to be successful and safe 
providing service for MCT.

The AE, SJ Morrison, and his staff will provide contract oversight and monitoring to include 
accountability for all aspects of safety. The AE is responsible for developing the RFP process 
for contracted service and will include language relative to the responsibility of the contractor to 
manage and operate service using SMS principals. Though contractors are not required under 
49 CFR Part 673 to develop their own PTASP, they are required to follow SMS methods of 
managing risk to include compliant Employee Safety Reporting Program. ACT has developed a 
Transit Agency Safety Plan for all its employees to follow and the transit district ensures the 
Plan is being followed.



11

Chief Safety Officer (CSO): The MCT CSO, Tony Lafata, is responsible for ensuring safety 
elements in the following areas are properly managed with the intent of creating a culture of 
safety. The CSO will participate in training relative to their role in implementing SMS per 
requirements in 49 CFR Part 673.

Employee Safety Reporting Program
Safety Performance Targets and Measures
Safety Risk Management

o Safety Hazard Identification
o Safety Risk Assessment
o Safety Risk Mitigation

Safety Assurance
o Safety Performance Monitoring and Measurement

Safety Promotion
o Competencies and Training
o Safety Communication

Employee Safety Reporting Program
ACT provides Employee Safety Reporting Program (ESRP). The ESRP will include the 
importance of safety and hazard reporting, elements covering retaliation assurances for 
reporting safety risks and penalties for false reporting. 

ACT includes an ESRP that applies to staff associated with the MCT contract including all 
operations and support personnel. The policy is combined with Anti-Harassment policies in the 
employee handbook. MCT as part of its oversight, will require reporting data on a monthly basis 
as part of the required performance and safety data reports. 

Section 5: Safety Performance Targets and Measures
MCT collects monthly data to include safety and performance data. This data is used annually 
to develop safety performance targets included in this plan. MCT uses current and historic 
safety data to develop targets while also monitoring monthly data to identify trends requiring 
mitigation actions. 

Section 6: Safety Risk Management
ACT has risk management policies, procedures, and processes in place to identify, assess and 
mitigate hazards. Any hazard identified is properly documented and provided to MCT if needed 
as part of the monthly data collection process. Documents related to risk management and 
monitoring are included in periodic operations and service reviews.

ACT has a robust reporting software developed in-house to identify risk and safety events, 
assess and mitigate risks and create a follow-up process allowing multiple users to add to the 
digital file. This mechanism allows ACT the ability to sort safety events by type and generate 
data reports used for identifying trends during monthly safety meetings. 

Section 7: Safety Assurance
MCT collects regular performance which includes safety performance targets as required by the 

Illinois Department of 



12

Transportation. The AE and CSO evaluates this information to identify trends in performance 
and safety monthly. If anomalies are noted in the data, ACT staff will investigate to identify the 
cause of the variance. 

The monthly data collected include:

Passenger Counts by Route by Day
Total Revenue Hours
Accident Log (Preventable/Non-Preventable) (AFR)
Employee Injuries (IFR)
Complaints (Valid/Invalid)
Road Calls (Vehicle Breakdowns that Require Maintenance to Scene and/or Towing)
Monthly National Transit Database (NTD) Report to include the following:

o Fatalities
o Injuries
o Safety Events
o System Reliability

Vehicle Inspection Report (Maintenance and Daily Vehicle Inspection Reports)
Preventive Maintenance 

MCT uses an Excel program to track these data points and conduct analysis to identify trends. 

Additionally, MCT will conduct reviews of assets, records, and processes to ensure 
adherence to contractual obligations, contractors ASP and Federal compliance. 

Section 8: Safety Promotion
Training programs include programs in safety, policy, compliance, and performance. ACT 
provides extensive new hire training, periodic training, and remedial/refresher training. 
Additionally, employees receive training from outside organizations like local first responders as 
well as State and Federal training programs. ACT staff meets weekly for one-hour safety 
meetings covering syllabus topics or trending topics observed in the past week.

Training files are included in periodic site reviews by MCT to ensure training policies are kept 
current and are relative to current events or trends in safety. 

Section 9: Additional Information
This PTASP was developed from information in other documents, policies and procedures and 
manuals. Those documents are listed below: 

ACT Employee Handbook
Maintenance Guidelines
ACT Internal Controls
ACT Safety Security and Emergency Preparedness Plan
Training Guides



13

Section 10: Definitions of Terms Used in the Safety Plan
MCT
Transportation Agency Safety Plan regulation.

Accident means an Event that involves any of the following: A loss of life; a report of a serious
injury to a person; a collision of public transportation vehicles; a runaway train; an evacuation for
life safety reasons; or any derailment of a rail transit vehicle, at any location, at any time,
whatever the cause.

Accountable Executive means a single, identifiable person who has ultimate responsibility for
carrying out the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan of a public transportation agency;
responsibility for carrying out the agency's Transit Asset Management Plan; and control or
direction over the human and capital resources needed to develop and maintain both the
agency's Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5329(d), and
the agency's Transit Asset Management Plan, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5326.

Equivalent Authority means an entity that carries out duties similar to that of a Board of
Directors for a recipient or subrecipient of FTA funds under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, including
sufficient authority to review and approve a recipient or subrecipient's Public Transportation
Agency Safety Plan.

Event means any Accident, Incident, or Occurrence.

Hazard means any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage
to or loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure of a public transportation
system; or damage to the environment.

Incident means an event that involves any of the following: a personal injury that is not a
serious injury; one or more injuries requiring medical transport; or damage to facilities,
equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure that disrupts the operations of a transit agency.

Investigation means the process of determining the causal and contributing factors of an
accident, incident, or hazard, for the purpose of preventing recurrence and mitigating risk.

National Public Transportation Safety Plan means the plan to improve the safety of all
public transportation systems that receive Federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter
53.

Occurrence means an Event without any personal injury in which any damage to facilities,
equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure does not disrupt the operations of a transit agency.

Operator of a public transportation system means a provider of public transportation as
defined under 49 U.S.C. 5302.

Performance measure means an expression based on a quantifiable indicator of
performance or condition that is used to establish targets and to assess progress toward
meeting the established targets.

Performance target means a quantifiable level of performance or condition, expressed as a
value for the measure, to be achieved within a time period required by the FTA.



14

Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (or Agency Safety Plan) means the
documented comprehensive Agency Safety Plan for a transit agency that is required by 49
U.S.C. 5329 and Part 673.

Risk means the composite of predicted severity and likelihood of the potential effect of a
hazard.

Risk mitigation means a method or methods to eliminate or reduce the effects of hazards.

Safety Assurance means processes within a transit agency's Safety Management System
that function to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of safety risk mitigation, and to
ensure that the transit agency meets or exceeds its safety objectives through the collection,
analysis, and assessment of information.

Safety Management Policy means a transit agency's documented commitment to safety,
which defines the transit agency's safety objectives and the accountabilities and responsibilities
of its employees in regard to safety.

Safety Management System means the formal, top-down, organization-wide approach to
managing safety risk and assuring the effectiveness of a transit agency's safety risk mitigation.
SMS includes systematic procedures, practices, and policies for managing risks and hazards.

Safety performance target means a performance target related to safety management
activities.

Safety Promotion means a combination of training and communication of safety information
to support SMS as applied to the transit agency's public transportation system.

Safety risk assessment means the formal activity whereby a transit agency determines
Safety Risk Management priorities by establishing the significance or value of its safety risks.

Safety Risk Management means a process within a transit agency's Agency Safety Plan for
identifying hazards and analyzing, assessing, and mitigating safety risk.

Serious injury means any injury which: (1) Requires hospitalization for more than 48 hours,
commencing within 7 days from the date when the injury was received; (2) Results in a fracture
of any bone (except simple fractures of fingers, toes, or noses); (3) Causes severe
hemorrhages, nerve, muscle, or tendon damage; (4) Involves any internal organ; or (5) Involves
second or third-degree burns, or any burns affecting more than 5 percent of the body surface.

Transit agency means an operator of a public transportation system.

Transit Asset Management Plan means the strategic and systematic practice of procuring,
operating, inspecting, maintaining, rehabilitating, and replacing transit capital assets to manage
their performance, risks, and costs over their life cycles, for the purpose of providing safe, cost
effective, and reliable public transportation, as required by 49 U.S.C. 5326 and 49 CFR Part
625.



15

Section 11. Commonly Used Acronyms

Acronym Word or Phrase
ADA American's with Disabilities Act of 1990
ASP Agency Safety Plan (also referred to as a PTASP in Part 673)
CFR Code of Federal Regulations
ESRP Employee Safety Reporting Program
FTA Federal Transit Administration
IDOT Illinois Department of Transportation
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization
Part 673 49 CFR Part 673 (Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan)
SMS Safety Management System
U.S.C. United States Code
VRM Vehicle Revenue Miles



RESOLUTION 21-04 

DESIGNATING DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LIAISON OFFICER 

AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM LIAISON 

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) is responsible for the provision of public mass 
transportation services pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District Act, as approved on July 21, 1959, 
as amended (70 ILCS 3610 et. seq.); and, 

WHEREAS, as a recipient of federal funds, the District is required by the United States Department of 
Transportation (USDOT), Federal Transit Administration, to administer an ongoing Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (DBE) Program and Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Program; and, 

WHEREAS, The DBE program primary goal and objective is to level the playing field by providing small businesses 
a fair opportunity to compete for federally funded transportation contracts; and, 

WHEREAS, the current DBE Program was approved by the District's board on November 19, 2015 which gives the 
Managing Director the authority to designate an interim and/or replacement DBE Liaison Officer (DBELO); and, 

WHEREAS, the DBE LO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE program and for ensuring that the 
District complies with all provisions of 49 CFR Part 26. The DBE LO has direct, independent access to the Managing 
Director concerning DBE program matters; and, 

WHEREAS, the EEO Program primary function is to ensure all DOT employees and applicants have the equal 
access to opportunities for employment. This program carries out the important function in accordance with the 
belief that the DOT best serves the public when it most accurately reflects that public. As such, promotes a 
workplace that is free of employment discrimination, embraces a spirit of diversity and inclusion; and, 

WHEREAS, the District finds it necessary to designate DBE/EEO program contact liaison in order to maintain 
compliance with provisions set forth by the USDOT, FTA, 49 CFR Part 26 and FTA Circular 4704.1 for this important 
required function within the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON COUNTY MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. Steven J. Morrison, Managing Director of the District, is authorized and directed to take any and all actions
as may reasonably be required to enact and administer the DBE and EEO programs, and maintain the
District in full compliance with the federal regulations.

2. Amanda Smith is hereby designated as the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Liaison Officer
(DBELO) and Equal Employment Opportunity Program Liaison.

3. This action supersedes any previous designation made by the Madison County Mass Transit District.

, Chairman 

Christopher C. Guy 

� &� 
�'Aiienidomite 

APPROVED a to Form: 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of 

Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am the keeper of the 

records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees of 

the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, July 30, 2020, a resolution was adopted 

in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison County Mass Transit District and the 

statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, and that the following is a full, complete, and 

true copy of the pertinent provisions of said Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 

COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. Steven J. Morrison, Managing Director of the District, is authorized and directed to take any and all
actions as may reasonably be required to enact and administer the DBE and EEO programs, and 
maintain the District in full compliance with the federal regulations.

2. Amanda Smith is hereby designated as the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Liaison
Officer (DBELO) and Equal Employment Opportunity Program Liaison.

3. This action supersedes any previous designation made by the Madison County Mass Transit
District.

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the Madison 

County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing Resolution remains in 

full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the Madison 

County Mass Transit District on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 



RESOLUTION 21-05 

AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF CERTAIN EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) was created in December 1980 by 
resolution of the Madison County Board pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District Act, 
approved July 21, 1959, as amended (70 ILCS 3610/1 et. seq.); and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District have met from time 
to time in closed session for purposes authorized by the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. 
seq.); and, 

WHEREAS, Section 2.06 of the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1 et. seq.) requires the 
District to review minutes of all closed meetings and to make a determination and report in open 
session that (1) the minutes or portions thereof no longer require confidential treatment and are 
available for public inspection or (2) the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of those 
minutes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the previous
closed session minutes, that the following minutes or portions thereof as described in
Attachment A are hereby approved, and that the minutes no longer require confidential
treatment and shall be available for public inspection.

2. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meeting Act, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the previous
closed session minutes, that the following minutes or portions thereof as described in
Attachment B are hereby approved, the Board finds that the need for confidentially still
exists, and that the minutes shall remain confidential.

3. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, the Board of Trustees approves of and directs the
destruction of all verbatim records of all meetings with the notation "complete release" as
described in Attachment A.

ADOPTED, by the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison County, 
Illinois, on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 

tilJW:f 
--++----=---+--����v·�----- -�--=--------=-=--'--=------') ��

Christopher C. Guy llen . Adomite 

Form: 

T 



Attachment A 

The following Executive Session Minutes or portions thereof are hereby approved and no 
longer require confidential treatment and shall be available for public inspection. 

May 31, 2018 (item Ill) 

September 27, 2018 (item VI) 

October 25, 2018 (item Ill) 

December 19, 2019 (item Ill) 

January 31, 2020 (items I, Ill) 

February 28, 2020 (item I) 



Attachment B 

The need for confidentially still exists as to all or part of the following Executive Session 
Minutes and that the following minutes or portions thereof shall remain closed. 

April 24, 2008 (item VII) 

January 27, 2011 (item Ill, IV) 

February 24, 2011 (item II, Ill) 

May 26, 2011 (item IV) 

June 21, 2011 (item VI) 

July 28, 2011 (item II) 

August 25, 2011 (item II) 

September 29, 2011 (item I) 

October 27, 2011 (item Ill) 

November 17, 2011 (item II) 

February 23, 2012 (item IV) 

May 31, 2012 (item Ill) 

June 28, 2012 (item I) 

July 26, 2012 (item I) 

September 27, 2012 (item IV) 

October 25, 2012 (item Ill) 

March 28, 2013 (item Ill) 

April 25, 2013 (item IV) 

January 30, 2014 (item I) 

February 27, 2014 

March 27, 2014 (item I) 

May 29, 2014 (item II) 

June 26, 2014 (item II) 

July 31, 2014 (item II) 

August 28, 2014 (item Ill) 

October 30, 2014 (item Ill) 

March 26, 2015 (item I) 

May 28, 2015 (item II) 

January 28, 2016 (item Ill) 

September 29, 2016 

November 17, 2016 (item II) 

December 22, 2016 (items IV, V) 

February 23, 2017 (item Ill) 

April 27, 2017 (item Ill) 

June 29, 2017 (item II) 

July 27, 2017 (item I) 

August 31, 2017 (item I) 

September 28, 2017 (items I, II) 

October 26, 2017 (item I) 

November 30, 2017 (item I) 

December 21, 2017 

January 25, 2018 (item Ill) 

May 31, 2018 (items I, IV, V, VI) 

August 30, 2018 (item II) 

September 27, 2018 (items I, II, Ill, IV, V, 
VII, VIII, IX, X) 

October 25, 2018 (items I, II) 

November 29, 2018 (item I, II) 

December 20, 2018 

January 31, 2019 (item II) 

March 4, 2019 

April 25, 2019 

July 25, 2019 (items Ill, IV, V) 

August 29, 2019 (items II, Ill, IV, V) 

September 26, 2019 (items II, Ill, IV) 

October 31, 2019 (item II) 

November 21, 2019 (items II, Ill, IV, V) 

December 19, 2019 (items I, II, IV, V) 

January 7, 2020 

January 31, 2020 (items II, IV) 

February 28, 2020 (item II) 

April 30, 2020 

May 28, 2020 

June 22, 2020 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the 
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am 
the keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, July 30, 2020, a 
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, 
and that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said 
Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the
previous closed session minutes, that the following minutes or portions thereof as
described in Attachment A are hereby approved, and that the minutes no longer
require confidential treatment and shall be available for public inspection.

2. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meeting Act, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the
previous closed session minutes, that the following minutes or portions thereof as
described in Attachment B are hereby approved, the Board finds that the need for
confidentially still exists, and that the minutes shall remain confidential.

3. Pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act, the Board of Trustees approves of and
directs the destruction of all verbatim records of all meetings with the notation
"complete release" as described in Attachment A.

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this thirtieth day of July 2020. 

�W-� 


	Agenda
	Meeting Minutes of 6/22/2020
	Financial
	Payment and Claims
	Monthly Financial Report
	Donation: Brainard
	Investment Policy
	Resolution 20-01 Downstate Operating Assistance Grant Agreement with IDOT
	DOAP Agreement


	Transit Service
	FOIA
	Wayfinding
	Alternative Transit Solutions
	Resolution 21-02 Authorizing MD to Sign Normal & Routine Docs
	Resolution 21-03 PTASP
	PTASP PLAN


	Resolution 21-04 DBE/EEO 
	Executive Agenda
	Formosa West
	I.T. Beltline
	Chain of Rocks Parcels
	Formosa East

	Resolution 21-05 Release of Certain Executive Session Minutes



